
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, August 10, 2015 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 
 

Boardroom 
5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
 

1. Call to Order. 
 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

  

 
3. Roll Call. 

 

 
Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of July 27, 2015. 

   
 

 5. Written Communications.  
 

 
6. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address 
and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda item, the 
speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30 
minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 
 

Motion 7. Resolution No. _____, Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8119 Located 
Between Alice Street and Washington Boulevard in the City of Fremont (to be 
reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).  
 

Motion 8. Review and Approve New Fact Sheet Regarding Recently Adopted Sewer Service 
Charges (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

Information  9.    Information Items: 
a. Check Register. 
b. CalPERS Replacement Benefit Plan (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 

Committee).  
c. Fourth Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Plan (to be reviewed by the 

Construction Committee).   

Page 1 of 85



d. Status of Priority 1 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Projects (to be reviewed by the 
Construction Committee). 

e. Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Commission meeting of      
July 16, 2015.  

 

Information  10. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Construction Committee – Wednesday, August 5, 2015, at 9:00 a.m. 
b. Budget & Finance Committee – Thursday, August 6, 2015, at 8:30 a.m. 
c. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Friday, August 7, 2015, at 9:15 a.m. 
d. Personnel Committee – will not meet.  

 
Information  11.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 

 

 
Information       12.   Other Business: 

a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 
business and are welcome to request information from staff. 

b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 

 
13. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Special Meeting in the Boardroom on 

Monday, August 17, 2015, at 4:00 p.m. 

 

  
 14. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the 

Boardroom on Monday, August 24, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 
 

  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 
District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 
the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

Page 2 of 85



 

NOTICE OF              All meetings will be held in 

COMMITTEE MEETING            the General Manager’s Office 
                5072 Benson Road, Union City, CA 94587 

 
 

BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 10, 2015 
             

 

Committee Membership: 

Budget and Finance  Directors Manny Fernandez and Pat Kite (Alt. – Jennifer Toy) 
Construction Committee  Directors Tom Handley and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Pat Kite) 
Legal/Community Affairs  Directors Pat Kite and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Tom Handley) 

Legislative Committee  Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt–Pat Kite) 
Personnel Committee  Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Anjali Lathi) 
Audit Committee  Directors Anjali Lathi and Jennifer Toy (Alt. Manny Fernandez) 
 

 

Construction Committee, Wednesday, August 5, 2015, at 9:00 a.m. 

9c.  Fourth Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Plan.   

9d.  Status of Priority 1 Capital Improvement Plan. 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Budget & Finance Committee, Thursday, August 6, 2015, at 8:30 a.m. 

9b.  CalPERS Replacement Benefit Plan. 
 

Legal/Community Affairs Committee, Friday, August 7, 2015, at 9:15 a.m. 

7.  Resolution No. _____, Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8119 Located Between Alice 
Street and Washington Boulevard in the City of Fremont. 

8.  Review and Approve New Fact Sheet Regarding Recently Adopted Sewer Service Charges. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors. 
(Gov. Code Section 11123) 

Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken. 

Page 3 of 85



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

July 27, 2015 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Toy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Jennifer Toy, President 
  Pat Kite, Secretary 
  Manny Fernandez, Director 
   
ABSENT: Tom Handley, Vice President 
  Anjali Lathi, Director 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager 
  Dave O’Hara, District Counsel 
  Karen Murphy, Special District Counsel 
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager  
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager   
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
  Michelle Powell, Communications Coordinator 
  Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst 
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary 
   
GUESTS: Alice Johnson, League of Women Voters 
     
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JULY 13, 2015 
 
It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Kite, to Approve the Minutes 
of the Regular Meeting held June 22, 2015.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Handley, Lathi 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR JUNE 2015 
 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  General Manager Eldredge 
reported the following: 
 

• Odor Complaints:  There were no odor complaints in June 2015. 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 85



• Safety: 
o A forklift was driving in the Co-Gen building and the floor grating began to 

collapse.  Staff has identified the floor grating as not being rated for vehicle traffic, 
and the area is being marked to warn vehicles from driving over the grating. 

• Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group: 
o At-work hours per employee per week is above the target of 34.   
o While the District met the goal of less than 47 hours of average annual sick leave 

per employee, not all work groups met the same goal.  Currently, the sick leave 
chart includes time off through FMLA (Family and Medical Leave Act).  Staff will 
be working on a new chart which will separate FMLA hours from standard sick 
leave. 

 
Principal Financial Analyst Scott reported the following on behalf of Business Services: 

• Revenues:   
o $609,647 received in capacity fees in June  
o The final Sewer Service Charge payment is expected to be received in August. 

• Expenses: 
o All Work Groups were under budget at the end of the fiscal year. 
o Operating expenses were under budget at the end of the fiscal year. 

 
General Manager Eldredge reported the following: 
 

• Technical Services:   
o Customer Service: 

 18 trouble calls dispatched  
 2 new lateral permits issued 
 Assisted with outreach for the recent public hearing 

o Environmental Compliance 
 Completed 73 Stormwater (Urban Runoff) inspections, of which 23 

resulted in enforcement action. 
 Completed 86 FOG (fats, oils, and grease for restaurants) inspections, of 

which 33 resulted in enforcement action. 
• Collection Services: 

o Completed over 21 miles of cleaning 
o Completed over 15 miles of televising sewer lines 
o Provided support for the following projects:  Fremont and Union City overlay 

projects, Mobile Technologies’ Study, and Newark Lateral Relocation 
• Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction: 

o Completed 98% of preventative maintenance activities for the month of June 
o Completed 103 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of June 
o Completed work on the cheese waste project 

• Treatment & Disposal: 
o Completed process of going down to one forcemain, due to lower flows and 

materials sitting in the forcemain too long.  The District has seen a $500/day 
savings in chemicals. 

o Cogen produced 73% of power consumed for the plant during the month of June 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
Page 5 of 85



ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no oral communications. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2765, HONORING DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL DAVID M. 
O’HARA UPON HIS RETIREMENT 
 
General Manager Eldredge thanked General Counsel O’Hara for his service to the District 
and read the resolution aloud. 
 
It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Kite, to approve Resolution 
No. 2765, Honoring District General Counsel Davis M. O’Hara Upon His Retirement.  
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Handley, Lathi 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
APPROVE THE SALARY FOR THE POSITION OF BUYER I 
 
This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Business Services Coach 
Destafney stated the District’s Buyer II will be retiring in September, and the upcoming 
recruitment will be for the position of Buyer I/II.  The District has not had a Buyer I in many 
years, and the job description has not been reviewed since 1993.  Staff updated the job 
description to include current duties and terminology.  Human Resources staff compared 
the salaries and job descriptions for Buyer I and II with other agencies, and recommended 
the education requirement for the Buyer I position be increased from a high school 
diploma to a 4-year degree.  Human Resources staff further recommended the salary for 
Buyer I be increased to reflect the higher level of qualification and responsibility reflected 
in the updated job description.  Staff recommended Board approval of the proposed 
changes to the salary for the position of Buyer I. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Approve the Salary 
for the Position of Buyer I.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Handley, Lathi 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
ACCEPT THE FINAL REPORT FOR THE HAYWARD MARSH REHABILITATION 
OPTIONS STUDY FROM RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Research and 
Support Team Coach Grillo stated the Hayward Marsh has provided the District with 20 
MGD (million gallons per day) of wet weather flow capacity not available via the EBDA 
(East Bay Discharge Authority) forcemain since 1988.  Sedimentation caused by natural 
processes resulted in a blockage of the inlet to pond 3B in 2013.  At the request of the 
East Bay Regional Parks District, Union Sanitary District conducted a planning level study 
to identify options for rehabilitation of the Marsh.  The Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation 
Options Study presented conceptual level design and associated planning level cost for 
Page 6 of 85



five rehabilitation options, and identified two alternatives to rehabilitation.  Staff 
recommended the Board approve the Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Options Study report 
prepared by RMC Water and Environment.  
 
It was moved by Secretary Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Accept the Final 
Report for the Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Options Study From RMC Water and 
Environment.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Handley, Lathi 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
ACCEPT THE FINAL REPORT FOR THE ALVARADO WASTEWATER TREATMENT 
PLANT SITE STUDY FROM RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT  
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated the purpose of the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant Site 
Use Study was to develop a high-level planning tool to guide optimization of the Alvarado 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) to meet future operational and maintenance needs.  
Staff presented the findings at the Board workshop held June 25, 2015, and received 
direction to bring the report to a future Board meeting for consideration and acceptance.  
The Board further directed staff to develop a property acquisition plan and a life cycle cost 
analysis, which staff expects to have completed by the Spring of 2016.  The Alvarado 
WWTP treats approximately 23 MGD and contains a total of 53 facilities located within 
the existing 33-acre site.  The City of Union City conducted a meeting regarding its 
General Plan on July 15, which included maps showing potential expansion areas for the 
District.  Staff recommended the Board Accept the Final Report for the Alvarado 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Study from RMC Water and Environment.   
 
It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Kite, to Accept the Final 
Report for the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Study from RMC Water and 
Environment.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Handley, Lathi 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
APPROVE MODIFICATION OF JOB TITLE FROM COMMUNICATIONS 
COORDINATOR TO COMMUNICATIONS AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
COORDINATOR, AND REVISIONS TO JOB DESCRIPTION AND SALARY 
SCHEDULE 
 
This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  General Manager Eldredge stated 
the Board directed staff to provide legislative updates, and approved the concept of 
adding said task to the job description of the District’s Communications Coordinator.  
General Manager Eldredge stated the Communications Coordinator class description had 
been modified to include tracking, summarizing, and reporting on state, local, and federal 
ordinances, regulations, and legislation.  Staff recommended the Board Approve 
Modification of Job Title from Communications Coordinator to Communications and 

Page 7 of 85



Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator, and Revisions to Job Description and Salary 
Schedule. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Approve 
Modification of Job Title from Communications Coordinator to Communications and 
Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator, and Revisions to Job Description and Salary 
Schedule.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Handley, Lathi 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Check Register   
All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report  
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Business Services 
Manager Cortes stated the Budget & Finance Committee had requested information 
regarding the Celebrations Party Equipment expense found on page 281 of the Board 
packet.  Business Services Manager Cortes stated the expense was due to equipment 
rented for the Cogeneration Ribbon Cutting event held in March and the District Open 
House held in May. 
 
Status Report on Computer and Student Loan Program 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Business Services 
Manager Cortes stated there were no student loans, and outstanding computer loans 
totaled $16,398.  At the time of publication, available funds for computer and student 
loans were $33,883.  
 
Board of Directors Internal Committee Assignments for FY16 
General Manager Eldredge stated Board Policy No. 3070.2 states the President of the 
Board of Directors is responsible for assigning members and alternates for internal 
committees. The FY16 assignments received from President Toy were as follows: 
   

Committee Board Member Alternate 
Audit Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 
Manny Fernandez 

Budget & Finance Manny Fernandez 
Pat Kite 

Jennifer Toy 

Construction Tom Handley 
Jennifer Toy 

Pat Kite 

Legal/Community Affairs Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 

Tom Handley 

Legislative Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Personnel Manny Fernandez 
Jennifer Toy 

Anjali Lathi 

 
Page 8 of 85



 
Discuss and Provide Direction to Staff Regarding Additional Communications on 
District Hearings and Website Information on Email Addresses  
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  General Manager 
Eldredge stated this item was the result of communications received from constituents 
prior to the recent sewer service charge public hearing.  Said emails were entered into 
the record and attached to the July 13, 2015, Board meeting packet.  General Manager 
Eldredge requested Board direction regarding responding to said emails, and a potential 
disclaimer to be added to the District website regarding communicating with the Board 
via email.   
 
The Board directed staff to develop a disclaimer for the District website to state email 
communications with the Board of Directors are also received by staff, General Manager 
Eldredge to work with the Board President to develop a response to emails received prior 
to the recent public hearing, and directed staff not to respond to the recent letter to the 
editor. 
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Budget & Finance, Legal/Community Affairs, and Personnel Committees met. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
General Manager Eldredge reported the following:  

• The co-digestion pilot (also known as the cheese waste project) started on            
July 23, 2015.  The material has been injected into digester four at a rate of 
1gallon/minute, and gas production has increased by approximately 5% in the 
short time since the pilot began. 

• Collection Services staff was successful in assisting a District customer in finding 
her wedding ring which had been accidentally flushed.  The customer and her 
husband expressed their gratitude by brining baked goods to Collections staff on 
the morning of July 27, 2015. 

• Environmental Compliance staff will provide an information table at the annual 
Newark Days to be held September 19 and 20, and Secretary Kite will participate 
in the parade. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
There was no other business. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:02 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, August 10, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.   
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     PAT KITE 
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY 
 

Page 9 of 85



APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________ 
JENNIFER TOY 
PRESIDENT 
 
 
 

Adopted this 10th day of August, 2015 

Page 10 of 85



 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: July 29, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 
 Al D. Bunyi, Associate Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 7 - Meeting of August 10, 2015 

 Resolution No.______ Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8119 
Located Between Alice Street and Washington Boulevard in the City of 
Fremont  

 
Recommendation 
 
Adopt a Resolution to accept a sanitary sewer easement between Alice Street and Washington 
Boulevard in the city of Fremont. 
 
Background 
 
Lennar Homes of California is constructing Tract 8119 between Alice Street and Washington 
Boulevard in the city of Fremont.   The housing tract will consist of eight duplexes and one single 
family detached home.  Sanitary sewer service to the residential development will be provided by 
a new 8-inch main in a private street named Casa Bella Common.  A Vicinity Map is attached.  
Because Casa Bella Common does not meet the City of Fremont street dimension requirements 
and structure setbacks, it was designated as a private street.  Consequently, a sanitary sewer 
easement is required since the sewer main is not built within a dedicated public street.  The new 
sewer main has been constructed and Lennar Homes has granted a sanitary sewer easement for 
the District to access and maintain the sewer.  The easement was granted at no cost to the 
District. 
 

Page 11 of 85



Agenda Item No. 7 
Meeting of August 10, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
District staff has reviewed the legal description and plat map of the easement and recommends 
approval. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RA/ADB:ks 
 
 
Attachments: Vicinity Map  

Resolution 
Grant of Easement 

Page 12 of 85



Legend

VICINITY MAP
GRANT OF EASEMENT - TRACT 8119

Disclaimer:
The information on this map is provided by Union Sanitary District (USD) for internal use only.
Such information is derived from multiple sources which may not be current, be outside the control of USD,
and may be of indeterminate accuracy.  The information provided hereon may be inaccurate or out of date,
and any person or entity who relies on said information for any purpose whatsoever does so
solely at their own risk.

For USD use only

Site

0 200ft100

Printed: 7/29/2015 9:40:

SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT

TRACT 8119

Page 13 of 85

rolliea
Text Box
Washington Blvd

rolliea
Text Box
Alice St

rolliea
Text Box
Olive Ave



 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

ACCEPT A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT  
FOR TRACT 8119 LOCATED BETWEEN ALICE STREET AND WASHINGTON BOULEVARD  

LOCATED IN FREMONT, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, that it hereby 
accepts the Grant of Easement from Lennar Homes of California, Inc., executed on May 13, 2015 
as described in the Grant of Easement for Sanitary Sewer Purposes and by attached Exhibit A and 
Exhibit B.  Legal Counsel for the District is hereby authorized to attend to the recordation 
thereof. 

 
 
 

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the following vote on 
August 10, 2015: 
 
 AYES: 
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSENT: 
 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
                      
       JENNIFER TOY 
       President, Board of Directors 
       Union Sanitary District 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
      
PAT KITE 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 
 

Page 14 of 85



Page 15 of 85



Page 16 of 85



Page 17 of 85



Page 18 of 85



Page 19 of 85



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE:       July 31, 2015  

MEMO TO:      Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM:       Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
   
SUBJECT:      Agenda Item No. 8 - Meeting of August 10, 2015 

Review and Approve New Fact Sheet Regarding Recently Adopted Sewer 
Service Charges   

Recommendation:   

Review and approve new fact sheet regarding recently adopted sewer service charges. 
 
Background:  

Now that the FY16 sewer service charges have been adopted, staff is of the opinion that a new 
fact sheet would be appropriate.  Similar to the previous fact sheet, this new document has the 
potential to be widely distributed and be a helpful tool for the District and Boardmembers to 
share pertinent facts about the District.  Thus, it seemed prudent to bring this document 
before the Board for review and approval.  Staff is requesting the Board provide any revisions 
at the Board meeting and approve a final version. 

 

 

Attachment:   Draft Sewer Service Charges Fact Sheet  
    

Page 20 of 85



 

 

Rate Increase FY 2016 

Union Sanitary District (USD) is an award winning public agency providing wastewater service to 
the Tri-Cities (Fremont, Newark and Union City).  USD held a public hearing in July 2015 to 
consider the third and final rate increase recommended by a 2013 rate study.  In 2013, USD 
sent a Proposition 218 notice to all property owners in Fremont, Newark, and Union City 
regarding rates for Fiscal Years 2014, 2015, and 2016. Before the July 2015 hearing, USD 
published notices in two newspapers and on its website containing information regarding time, 
place, and format for public comment. 

The District recognizes that no one enjoys a rate increase and continuously looks for ways to 
reduce costs while maintaining a high level of service. Only four agencies of 26 surveyed in the 
Bay Area have rates lower than USD. To meet increased expenses, and to allow for necessary 
and required maintenance and upgrades to the District’s infrastructure, USD staff 
recommended the Board adopt a modest increase in sewer service charges for all customers. 
For single-family homeowners (the majority of USD’s customers) the increase equates to $1.67 
per month, bringing the annual total to $377 for Fiscal Year 2016. 

 

Background: 

USD strives to keep rates low and stable  
Beginning in 2004, USD implemented a rate increase program for the purpose of funding capital 
improvements and keeping pace with increasing operation costs facing the agency. Prior to 
2004, USD had not increased rates since 1997, and in fact decreased them in 1999, 2000, and 
2002. During that time, the District used reserves to finance the majority of its capital projects, 
which significantly decreased this account. A modest rate increase program was implemented 
in 2004 to carry out the Board’s philosophy of keeping rates relatively stable over time and 
insulate ratepayers from large fluctuations. USD’s goal is to keep sewer service charges as low 
as possible and protect customers from the price spikes that can occur in a service delivery 
business. Under this program, USD’s sewer service charges have increased an average of 5.5 
percent each year since 2004. A graph illustrating the recent history of rates and capital 
expenditures is shown on the following page. 

Page 21 of 85



 

The District plans 10 years in advance for capital projects and needs; however, these capital 
expenditures are evaluated on an annual basis. Capital expenditures for FY 2015 are anticipated 
to total $15.3 million. Currently, capital expenditure projected totals for Fiscal Years 2016, 
2017, and 2018 are $16.75, $23.25, and $26.2 million respectively. 

USD rates in perspective  
USD conducts an annual rate comparison survey of 26 Bay Area wastewater agencies. It is the 
District’s goal to remain in the lower 1/3 of agencies surveyed, meaning USD’s rates would be 
lower than 2/3 of neighboring agencies. Today, only four districts have lower rates. 

 

$13,679,106
$12,883,305

$10,751,713

$21,373,200

$16,423,680

$10,334,639

$25,478,978 $25,504,644

$17,781,708

$6,583,837
$7,098,937

$9,641,617

$14,995,919

$10,450,741

$9,129,799

$18,486,346

$11,336,658

$19,787,091

1.7%

0.0%

-2.3% -2.0%

0.0%

-1.6%

0.0%

5.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%
6.5% 6.5% 6.5%

5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
5.7%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

FY97 FY98 FY99 FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14

Sewer Service Charge Rate Changes & Capital Expenditures

Capital Expenditures

% Rate Change

Page 22 of 85



USD’s rate comparison history 

The graph below shows USD’s rate percentiles since the District began surveying 26 Bay Area 
wastewater agencies annually in 2002. USD's rates are currently in the 15th percentile.   
 

 
 
Compared to other utilities and services, USD’s rates are the lowest. 

A typical household in USD’s service area pays considerably more for services like those below: 

Sewer Rate shown is USD's FY 2015 single-family residential rate (July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015) 
 
Other monthly utility rates are based on a typical residential household and were obtained from service providers in August 2014. Cell phone monthly 
bill is based on a typical calling plan for a family of four. 

 
USD’s Capital Improvement Program is a large driver for increased rates: 
USD maintains a large number of facilities and equipment, including more than 811 miles of 
sewer lines, seven pump stations, the treatment plant and other infrastructure – much of it 
built in the late 1970s. Responsible, timely upkeep of these facilities has allowed the District to 
avoid catastrophic failures, interruptions to service, major spills, and sinkholes that often 
plague other utilities and agencies.   

Since 2004, the primary focus of the District’s Capital Improvement Program has been on 
rehabilitation, replacement and repair of its pump stations and treatment plant equipment. For 
Fiscal Years 2004 - 2014, USD spent more than $151 million on capital projects. The plant 
operates 24/7/365 to process an average of 23 million gallons of untreated sewage every day, 

42%

28%

24%

28%

15.3%

19.2%

15.3% 15.3% 15.3% 15.3% 15.3%
11.5% 11.5%

15.3%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

USD SSC Percentile of 26 Surveyed Agencies

Page 23 of 85



and operates and maintains more than 50 major treatment process units and buildings. A large 
portion of District facilities are now over 35 years old.  

USD's Proposed Rate Increase Compared to Inflation 
The Consumer Price Index, typically referred to as inflation, for the San Francisco Bay Area has 
averaged approximately 3% annually. The proposed rate increase does exceed inflation as it 
takes operational and capital increases into consideration, which are not the types of expenses 
included in CPI computations. Capital expenses, or the cost of projects required to maintain the 
integrity of the District’s infrastructure, are based upon a prioritized need and life cycle of the 
infrastructure. Limiting rate increases to accommodate inflation only would result in a short-fall 
in funds necessary to safely and responsibly operate the District and maintain/rehabilitate 
infrastructure. The difference in revenues between 5.7% and 3% over the next four years would 
equate to approximately 14.5 million dollars in lost revenue.  
 
Without this revenue, District staff would have to be significantly reduced and/or capital 
projects would be postponed or not completed. All of the projects proposed in the District’s CIP 
program are necessary, thus delaying projects raises the likelihood of failure, increases project 
costs, and leads to possibly even larger future rate increases. Approximately 15 critical projects 
in the current CIP budget would need to be deferred to a later date if revenues were decreased.  
 
Deferring and deleting planned CIP projects increases the risk of failure.  Repair and 
replacement costs increase when infrastructure fails due to the emergency nature of this work.  
These additional costs include but are not limited to uncompetitive bids, clean-up, claims for 
damage, traffic delays, material and labor premiums and environmental impacts that can lead 
to permit violations and fines.  A planned repair and replacement program is significantly more 
cost effective and efficient.  The deferment of projects does not secure a reduced rate as these 
projects will need to be completed at some point. 
 
If the rate increase were reduced to 3%, utilizing the CIP budget currently recommended by staff, 
the Structural Renewal & Replacement Fund balances would be negative. Under this scenario 
negative fund balances would begin in FY 2018 and would extend for five consecutive years, with 
the largest negative balance of $16.2 million in FY 2020. This would not only violate the District’s 
adopted Reserve Fund Policy, but also significantly weaken its financial stability. In accordance 
with generally accepted government accounting standards, the District's policy states that, at a 
minimum, the fund should remain positive throughout a ten year planning period.  
 
The graph on the following page shows the District’s fund balances under a 3% scenario: 
 

Page 24 of 85



 
 
 
Additional Costs  
In addition to funding USD’s capital improvement program, rate increases have been 
implemented in part to address other rising costs.  Approximately 42% of the District’s total 
budget is dedicated to personnel expenses, which is within range of other service providers in 
this industry. Every business has faced steeply rising employee costs, USD is no different.  To 
help offset these rising costs, all USD employees pay a portion of their health care and pension 
benefits.  By March of 2016, employees of USD will be paying approximately 30% of the overall 
pension costs.  In addition, USD is subject to pension reforms enacted by the State.  These 
reforms reduce the retirement benefit and raise the retirement age for new USD employees 
that have not participated in the previous retirement program.  Currently, approximately 10% 
of USD’s workforce participate in the new program. 
 
Chemicals, electricity, and fuel also account for a significant portion of the District’s budget - 
those costs have similarly increased substantially over the last 10 years. Chemical costs alone 
were over $1.8 million in FY 2014. USD’s electricity bill in FY 2014 was over $2.1 million. While 
USD uses renewable energy wherever possible and works toward energy-independence, the 
District must still purchase power from outside sources, generally at rising costs every year.  
Moreover, the cost of complying with state and local regulations, including annual permit fees, 
also continues to rise.  
 
Efficiency/Technology   
One of the many factors keeping USD’s rates low is efficient service and use of technology.  By 
implementing technology to streamline permitting, plant operations, maintenance 
management and engineering services, the District has been able to maintain conservative 
staffing levels, thus helping to control costs.  USD also teams with neighboring agencies to 

7,402,000
9,131,000

1,474,000

-7,397,000

-12,549,000

-16,227,000

-$20,000,000

-$15,000,000

-$10,000,000

-$5,000,000

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Fund Balance - 3% Rate Increase Scenario

Ending Balance

Page 25 of 85



purchase chemicals and equipment at discounted prices.  Careful financial planning allows USD 
to finance capital improvements at very low, below-market rates. 
 
Award Winning Service/Agency 
USD is proud of its award winning service.  Since 2004, nearly every team or workgroup at USD 
has received awards.  A partial list of those awards includes: 

• Peak Performance Platinum Award from the National Association of Clean Water 
Agencies (NACWA) for five years of 100% compliance at the District’s Treatment Plant. 
USD's Plant has been recognized for 21 consecutive years by NACWA (and its 
predecessor, the Association of Metropolitan Sewerage Agencies or AMSA) for 
outstanding performance 

• Engineering Achievement Award for 2014 from the California Water Environment 
Association (CWEA) 

• CWEA Collection System Worker of the Year – 2013 
• CWEA Al Ditman Professional Development Award - 2013 
• CWEA Safety Program of the Year – Statewide Award 2010 
• CWEA Treatment Plant of the Year for the State of California - 2009  
• CWEA Collection System Maintenance Program of the Year - 2005, 2009, 2010, 2012 
• US EPA Pretreatment Program of the Year (National Award) - 2008 
• Distinguished Project Award, 2007 - American Public Works Association 
• Training Magazine International Top 125 Training Programs (private and public sector 

businesses) – 2011 (USD was one of only 3 public sector agencies of the 125 companies) 
 
For more information, please take a look at USD’s previous newsletters which can be found on 
the District’s website at www.unionsanitary.ca.gov .  Go to the “links and glossary” tab and look 
for Customer Focus to read District newsletters. 
 
 
 

 

Protecting the Tri-Cities and San Francisco Bay 
5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 
(510) 477-7500 
www.unionsanitary.ca.gov 
email: contactusd@unionsanitary.ca.gov 

 

Page 26 of 85

http://www.unionsanitary.ca.gov/
http://www.unionsanitary.ca.gov/
mailto:contactusd@unionsanitary.ca.gov


Check No.

158314

158269

158285

158323

158284

158292

158278

158310

158389

Date

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

Invoice No.

64002

5839

5736

2951

2943

20150528

4690

800394.11

20150063

201303514

201300828

170120150709

380420150709

30103445

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

RANGER PIPELINES INC

CAL SAN RISK MNGT AUTH

EAST BAY DISCHARGERS AUTHORITY

SWRCB - STATE WATER RESOURCES

DW NICHOLSON CORP

GSE CONSTRUCTION CO INC

COVELLO GROUP INC

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC

SYNAGRO WEST LLC

Description

NEWARK BACKYARD SS RELOCATION - PHASE 2

7/1/15-16 WC PROGRAM

07/15 - 06/16 PROPERTY INSURANCE RENEWAL

RNWL & REPL FUND ASSES FY16

O&M ASSESSMENT, JUL-SEP 2015

SRF LOAN #C085222110 - BOYCE LIFT

COGENERATION PROJECT

THICKENER CONTROL BLDG IMPROV PHASE II

NEWARK BACKYARD SS & MISC SEWER SPOT REPAIR PH 6

THICKENER CONROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II

COGENERATION PROJECT

SERV TO 06/22/15 PLANT

SERV TO 06/29/15 CHERRY ST PS

JUNE 2015 BIOSOLIDS DISPOSAL

Pagel of 15

Invoice Amt

$471,133.50

$350,247.00

$75,714.29

$113,850.00

$297,497.96

$411,063.52

$341,308.36

$333,226.75

$35,628.25

$36,673.19

$1,856.00

$62,442.96

$211.49

$51,153.48

Check Amt

$471,133.50

$425,961.29

$411,347.98

$411,063.52

$341,308.36

$333,226.75

$74,157.44

$62,654.45

$51,153.48

Page 27 of 85



2heck No. Date Invoice No.

158332 7/23/2015 2027591

7/23/2015 2027787

7/23/2015 2027788

7/23/2015 2027806

7/23/2015 2027588

7/23/2015 2027589

7/23/2015 2027789

7/23/2015 2027836

158308 7/23/2015 6945

158379 7/30/2015 201507

158293 7/23/2015 800394.11E

158263 7/23/2015 3PU03

158288 7/23/2015 902222339

158262 7/23/2015 883

158307 7/23/2015 86420150701

7/23/2015 000720150701

7/23/2015 97720150701

158298 7/23/2015 9017456379

7/23/2015 9017456756

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

WEST YOST & ASSOCIATES

OMP-I&G CREEKSIDE INVESTORS

NICHOLAS J PEROS

GSE CONSTRUCTION CO INC

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MGMT DIST

EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES

AUTOMATED NETWORK CONTROLS

DAVID M O'HARA ATTY AT LAW

KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS, INC.

Description

NEWARK BACKYARD SS RELOCATION - PHASE 2

JARVIS AVENUE SS REPLACEMENT (MISC SS SPOT REPAIRS - PH

PINE STREET EASEMENT

ALVARADO-NILES ROAD SS REHABILITATION

JARVIS AVENUE SS REPLACEMENT (MISC SS SPOT REPAIRS - PH

PLANT FACILITIES IMPROVEMENTS

NEWARK BACKYARD SS RELOCATION - PHASE 2

PINE STREET EASEMENT

REFUND #18260

SCADA MASTER PLAN & SCADA STANDARDS

THICKENER CONTROL BLDG IMPROV PHASE II - ESCROW PYMT

ANNUAL PERMIT RNWL-PLANT A1209

26,070 LBS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE

SCADA/ PLC PROGRAMMING SERVICES

GENERAL LEGAL - MAY 2015

LEGAL SVCS- TRANSITION

CIP LEGAL-JUNE 2015

8.13 DRY TONS FERROUS CHLORIDE

8.21 DRY TONS FERROUS CHLORIDE

Page 2 of 15

Invoice Amt

$3,451.50

$2,026.50

$3,223.50

$57.50

$2,774.50

$18,296.00

$1,580.50

$12,700.53

$34,790.00

$22,161.64

$17,538.25

$16,190.00

$12,159.05

$11,374.01

$5,743.50

$4,294.50

$1,197.00

$5,341.41

$5,393.97

Check Amt

$44,110.53

$34,790.00

$22,161.64

$17,538.25

$16,190.00

$12,159.05

$11,374.01

$11,235.00

$10,735.38

Page 28 of 85



Check No.

158370

158372

158394

158326

158392

158351

158318

158259

158306

158273

Date

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

Invoice No.

2616

11559

116360

691562

691342

691553

691851

390762

694507

693223

693783

693804

29143

20150716

63482

101878

44083402

44615942

44615974

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

KOFF & ASSOCIATES

LOOKINGPOINT INC

VAVRINEK, TRINE, DAY & CO LLP

UNIVAR USA INC

UNIVAR USA INC

COLANTUONO HIGHSMITH & WHATLEY

SAN JOSE WATER CO FBO BAYWORK

AIR & TOOL ENGINEERING COMPANY

MUNICIPAL MAINT EQUIPMENT INC

CINTAS FIRE PROTECTION

Description

EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT SERVICES - HRA & BS MGR

MPLS MIGRATION CONSULTING

AUDITING SERVICES JUNE 2015

5,080 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5.029 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

4,996 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5,000 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5,000 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5,003 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5,032 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5,031 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5.030 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

PROP 218 ADVICE

ANNUAL FEE FOR FY 2015-2016

1 CONCRETE CHAIN SAW

1 EA ANTI-BLAST NOZZLE

INSPECTION, SP 5 YEAR & 7 GAUGES FOR SPRINKLER SYSTEMS

INSPECTION.ANNUAL.SPRINKLER SYSTEM WET TYPE

INSPECTION.QTRLY.SPRINKLER SYSTEM WET TYPE

Page 3 of 15

Invoice Amt

$10,582.50

$10,000.00

$9,600.00

$2,358.70

$2,335.02

$2,319.69

$2,321.55

$-2,321.55

$2,262.41

$2,275.53

$2,275.07

$2,274.62

$6,224.75

$6,105.00

$5,671.91

$5,354.49

$4,631.00

$395.00

$295.00

Check Amt

$10,582.50

$10,000.00

$9,600.00

$9,275.82

$6,825.22

$6,224.75

$6,105.00

$5,671.91

$5,354.49

$5,321.00

Page 29 of 85



Check No. Date

158281 7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

158371 7/30/2015

158319 7/23/2015

158377 7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

158313 7/23/2015

158268 7/23/2015

158353 7/30/2015

Invoice No.

256844

256860

251787

256806

256862

256773

256805

256801

254568

256769

10959805

445.6

5699940

5714910

5699944

150630

189899

89515

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

CURTIS & TOMPKINS LTD

KRONOS INC

SCHEIDEGGER & ASSOCIATES

NATIONAL TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER

PROSAFE

BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSON LLP

DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS

Description

70 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

4 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

22 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

30 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

6 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

2 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

6 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

2 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

3 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

17 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

CONFIGURATION & TESTING SUPPORT, PROJECT MGMT

STEVENSON COMMUNICATION TOWER PROJECT

REGIS FOR MECHANICAL DRIVE - 3 DAY LAB - NOEGEL

REGIS FOR MECHANICAL DRIVE - 3 DAY LAB - STRASBURG

REGIS FOR MECHANICAL DRIVE - 3 DAY LAB - SEPULVEDA

40 HRS INSPECTIONS & 4 HRS SPCC

SPECIAL COUNSEL SERVICES - MAY 2015

SEISMIC STUDY

Page 4 of 15

nvoice Amt Check Ami

$1,155.00
$5,105.00

$630.00

$440.00

$495.00

$945.00

$315.00

$525.00

$315.00

$105.00

$180.00

$4,680.00
$4,680.00

$4,635.00
$4,635.00

$1,499.00
$4,497.00

$1,499.00

$1,499.00

$4,400.00
$4,400.00

$3,929.81
$3,929.81

$3,900.00
$3,900.00

Page 30 of 85



Check No. Date Invoice No.

158261 7/23/2015 4017275220150706

7/23/2015 4017274120150706

158380 7/30/2015 103220

158378 7/30/2015 7136

158304 7/23/2015 34683988

7/23/2015 34785693

7/23/2015 34853384

7/23/2015 34980765

7/23/2015 34683987

7/23/2015 34785692

7/23/2015 33175524

7/23/2015 34683986

7/23/2015 34836308

7/23/2015 35035994

158275 7/23/2015 20150630

158386 7/30/2015 2614

158295 7/23/2015 116740401

158321 7/23/2015 20150630

158354 7/30/2015 7969

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

PIIAN SYSTEMS LLC

OMP-I&G CREEKSIDE INVESTORS

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

COLLISON ENGINEERING

SIGNET TESTING LABS INC

HOFFMEYER COMPANY INC

STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION

DEMIGUEL PLUMBING

Description

SERV TO: 07/02/15 - FREMONT BLVD

SERV TO: 07/02/15 - FREMONT BLVD

6 ODOR NEUTRALIZER - INDUSTRIAL CONCENTRATE (5 GALLON P

REFUND #18293

8 EA GRADE 70 WELDED CHAIN W/HOOKS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

2 EA POLYPROPYLENE CAM & GROOVE HOSE COUPLINGS

2 EA OPEN-TOP BAGS

6 EA MULTIPURPOSE GAUGES

5 EA GASKETS

4 EA GRAB HOOK RATCHET LOAD BINDER

20 EA STRUT-MOUNT CLAMPS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

HAYWARD MARSH PERMIT METAL STUDY

NEWARK BACKYARD SS RELOCATION - PHASE 2

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

SALES & USE TAX 4/15-6/15

REFUND* 18284

Page 5 of 15

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$120.32
$3,643.27

$3,522.95

$3,623.61
$3,623.61

$3,300.00
$3,300.00

$545.81
$3,003.94

$807.85

$189.76

$40.97

$168.64

$68.60

$9.30

$517.52

$120.96

$534.53

$3,000.00
$3,000.00

$2,869.00
$2,869.00

$2,679.62
$2,679.62

$2,675.00
$2,675.00

$2,500.00
$2,500.00

Page 31 of 85



Check No. Date Invoice No.

158309 7/23/2015 XCTZOOQ

7/23/2015 XCTZOOR

158282 7/23/2015 20150715

158391 7/30/2015 5304

158276 7/23/2015 20150629

158345 7/30/2015 331231

158361 7/30/2015 111131512001

158336 7/30/2015 63457

158398 7/30/2015 34084

7/30/2015 34448

158339 7/30/2015 7239

7/30/2015 6926

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

PACHECO BROTHERS GARDENING INC

CWEA-NRTC

TITUS INDUSTRIAL GROUP INC

COMMUNICATION & CONTROL INC

CALTROL INC

GEXPRO

AIR & TOOL ENGINEERING COMPANY

WECO INDUSTRIES LLC

AMERICAN DISCOUNT SECURITY

Description

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES JULY 2015

WEED ABATEMENT WORK JULY 2015

CERT RENEWAL - COLL SERV 12 EMPLOYEES

3 GMI 26" BLACK COMPOSITE WATER RESISTANT MANHOLE

UTILITY FEE/ANTENNA RENTAL

4 PRESSURE GAUGES

PROFICY IFIX ICLIENTTS LICENSE

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

REPAIR OF CCTV SYSTEM ON TRUCK # T2372

REPAIR OF OZIII CAMERA

JULY SECURITY GUARD SERVICES

APRIL SECURITY GUARD SERVICES

Page 6 of 15

Invoice Amt

$1,365.00

$915.00

$2,019.00

$2,000.73

$1,877.30

$1,731.57

$1,656.14

$1,608.94

$492.68

$1,037.64

$759.00

$759.00

Check Amt

$2,280.00

$2,019.00

$2,000.73

$1,877.30

$1,731.57

$1,656.14

$1,608.94

$1,530.32

$1,518.00

Page 32 of 85



Check No. Date

158265 7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

158328 7/23/2015

158340 7/30/2015

158344 7/30/2015

7/30/2015

Invoice No.

10769700

10795540

10798520C

10795541

10798520

10772630

10694740C

10802610

10703151C

10798060

10768730

10803580

10794240

30783

596638208

10813270

10787300

Vendor

BLAISDELL'S

VALLEY OIL COMPANY

AT&T

BLAISDELL'S

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Description

ASTD OFFICE & BREAK ROOM SUPPLIES

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

1 BINDER

1BX COR TAPE

1 BINDER

1 BX CLASP ENVELOPES

1 TONER CREDIT

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

1 PK CNTRL FILE HNGR CREDIT

1 PK MSG SPEED FORM

12 RM CUP XEROX PAPER

1 12" WHISPER CLOCK

1 SIT/STAND WORKSTATION FOR ROSLYN FULLER

2DRSXLD15/40OIL

SERV: 07/10/15-08/09/15

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

2 156572A6CBM01 NTF CHAIR, STRATA, MED,

Page 7 of 15

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$600.21
$1,322.67

$29.66

$-8.79

$20.88

$8.79

$7.83

$-113.29

$57.71

$-54.99

$71.49

$67.19

$16.49

$619.49

$1,199.18
$1,199.18

$1,178.56
$1,178.56

$60.81
$1,160.81

$1,100.00

Page 33 of 85



Check No.

158296

158374

158352

158397

158267

158301

158338

158325

158324

158385

Date

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

Invoice No.

200674830

649

4026

98386

98341

255069

256883

303938

303940

299757

84961

20150720

10324

45818

28287

686518640

8122768071615

4868173071615

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

IRON MOUNTAIN

MCINERNEY & DILLON, P.C.

CURTIS & TOMPKINS LTD

WATSON-MARLOW INC

BRUCE BARTON PUMP SERVICE INC

ARMANDO LOPEZ

ALLIED FLUID PRODUCTS CORP

THOMAS AND ASSOCIATES

TELEPACIFIC COMMUNICATIONS

SIERRA SPRING WATER COMPANY

Description

DATA/MEDIA OFF-SITE STORAGE JUNE 2015

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - JUNE 2015

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - JUNE 2015

LEGAL SERVICES - WESTERN ENERGY SYSTEMS

LEGAL SERVICES

13 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

3 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

TRIAL AGREEMENT BREDEL 40 PUMP

TRIAL AGREEMENT BREDEL 40 PUMP

TRIAL AGREEMENT BREDEL 40 PUMP

1 SUMP PUMP

EXP REIMB: AIRFARE & REGIS FEE - WEFTEC 2015 (SEPT)

2 4X20KANALINE SR PVC HOSE

2 4X20 KANALINE SR PVC S/D HOSE

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

WIRELESS INTERNET BACKUP - JULY

BOTTLESS COOLERS RENTAL

WATER SERVICE 06/19/15 - 07/16/15

Page 8 of 15

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$236.43
$1,158.31

$629.33

$292.55

$864.00
$1,152.00

$288.00

$1,080.00
$1,140.00

$60.00

$-1,764.14
$1,055.08

$1,055.08

$1,764.14

$1,049.07
$1,049.07

$1,007.99
$1,007.99

$492.75
$987.75

$495.00

$971.02
$971.02

$960.00
$960.00

$239.00
$925.30

$686.30

Page 34 of 85



Check No. Date

158290 7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

158396 7/30/2015

158264 7/23/2015

158271 7/23/2015

Invoice No.

1083702975

1083704896

1083704893

1083704894

1083702973

1083702978

1083704897

1083704895

1083702976

1083702972.1

1083704892.2

1083702974

1083702977

1083704898

1083702972.2

1083704892.1

7113

61553

97929

Vendor

G&K SERVICES CO

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

WARM SPRINGS CONSTRUCTORS

BEECHER ENGINEERING

CDW GOVERNMENT LLC

Description

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORMS AND MATS

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

ASTD DUST MOPS. WET MOPS & TERRY TOWELS

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORMS AND MATS

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWELS

REFUND* 18278

STANDBY POWER SYSTEM UPGRADE

SMARTNET FOR R&R

Page 9 of 15

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$923.10
$27.17

$15.16

$100.87

$90.49

$100.87

$11.20

$59.22

$27.17

$15.16

$33.78

$121.26

$90.49

$64.02

$11.20

$121.26

$33.78

$897.50
$897.50

$850.00
$850.00

$849.00
$849.00

Page 35 of 85



heck No. Date Invoice No.

158337 7/30/2015 9041096510

158260 7/23/2015 9928392076

158289 7/23/2015 9626

158266 7/23/2015 11244796

158331 7/23/2015 34449

158335 7/30/2015 32961

158294 7/23/2015 1580011

158274 7/23/2015 35449

158369 7/30/2015 1020140

158317 7/23/2015 27717

158376 7/30/2015 150751

158342 7/30/2015 69667

158388 7/30/2015 230355300

158401 7/30/2015 80339979

7/30/2015 80339977

7/30/2015 80339983

158277 7/23/2015 7907

158287 7/23/2015 7917

158300 7/23/2015 11536

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

AIRGAS NCN

AIRGAS NCN

FREMONT EXPRESS COURIER SVC

BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS

WECO INDUSTRIES LLC

ABACUS PRODUCTS INC

HANSON AGGREGATES INC

CLAREMONT BEHAVIORAL SERVICES

INDUSTRIAL SAFETY SUPPLY

SAFARI BOOKS ONLINE LLC

METROMOBILE COMMUNICATIONS INC

BELILOVE COMPANY ENGINEERS

STEVEN ENGINEERING INC

XEROX CORPORATION

COMPLETE ENVIRON SOLUTIONS

EVENFLOW PLUMBING CO. INC.

LOOKINGPOINT INC

Description

2CYLARGON

CYLINDER RENTAL

COURIER SERVICES: JUNE 2015 DAILY MAIL/7 BOARDMEMBER DE

ALVARADO POTABLE WATER TANK/USE STUDY

REPAIR OF CAMERA

500 PLUMBER PENS

8.57 TONS 1/2 MED TYPE A AC-R

AUG 2015 EAP PREMIUM

ASTD CAL GAS

RENEW 10 SLOT BOOKSHELF WITH DOWNLOADS

ANNUAL RADIO SERVICE - JULY 2015

1 NEODYNE PRESSURE SWITCHES

4 PHOENIX UPS-BATA/RLA/24DE/7.2AH

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE

REFUND #18259

REFUND #18270

MONTHLY PREMIER SERVICE - JULY 2015

Page 10 of 15

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$817.12
$817.12

$815.80
$815.80

$805.00
$805.00

$800.80
$800.80

$779.94
$779.94

$756.00
$756.00

$646.33
$646.33

$634.80
$634.80

$615.60
$615.60

$598.00
$598.00

$582.75
$582.75

$567.56
$567.56

$564.30
$564.30

$15.47
$503.86

$389.10

$99.29

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

Page 36 of 85



Check No. Date Invoice No.

158322 7/23/2015 7967

158347 7/30/2015 7942

158349 7/30/2015 7794

158356 7/30/2015 7961

158357 7/30/2015 7958

158359 7/30/2015 7920

158393 7/30/2015 7965

158383 7/30/2015 2630100001

158360 7/30/2015 1083706805

7/30/2015 1083706802

7/30/2015 1083706807

7/30/2015 1083706806

7/30/2015 1083706804

7/30/2015 1083706803

7/30/2015 1083706801.1

7/30/2015 1083706801.2

158297 7/23/2015 20150721

158286 7/23/2015 1000385354

158350 7/30/2015 50405

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

STREAMLINE PLUMBING & DRAIN

FRANKLIN CHAN

SARAVANA CHILLA

DRAIN DOCTOR

DRAIN LINE PLUMBING SEWER SPEC

FREMONT PAIN TREATMENT CENTER

VALDEZ CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

S & S SUPPLIES & SOLUTIONS

G&K SERVICES CO

TODD JACOB

ENVIRONMENTAL EXPRESS

CITYLEAF INC

Description

REFUND #18268

REFUND #18283

REFUND #18282

REFUND #18280

REFUND #18281

REFUND #18290

REFUND #18279

ASTD SAFETY SUPPLIES

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORMS AND MATS

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWELS

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

EXP REIMB: IT TEAM FY15 SAFETY INCENTIVE GIFT CARDS

ASTD COPPER, 1000UL/ML. 250ML STANDARD. ENV.

PLANT MAINTENANCE - JUL 2015

Page 11 of 15

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$487.96
$487.96

$15.16
$444.81

$100.87

$11.20

$59.22

$27.17

$90.49

$33.78

$106.92

$441.10
$441.10

$433.38
$433.38

$429.65
$429.65

Page 37 of 85



Check No.

158330

158366

158333

158395

158341

158382

158312

158362

158311

158320

158399

158400

158334

158358

158381

158387

Date

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

Invoice No.

20150716

601680269

2137224

8041846962

8041846963

243072

7579572700

110069

1248518908

7993254

20150701

20150727.1

20150727.2

25156

1112065

20153501

20150729

20150728.1

20150728.2

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

JANINNE WARD

HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO

WHATS HAPPENING INC

VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC

AUTO BODY TOOLMART

RS HUGHES CO INC

PREFERRED ALLIANCE INC

GLACIER ICE COMPANY INC

PILLSBURY WINTHROP SHAW PITTMA

SPOK INC

WEF-WATER ENVIRONMENT FEDERATI

WEF-WATER ENVIRONMENT FEDERATI

WILEY PRICE & RADULOVICH LLP

FASTENAL

QUICK SPACE RENTALS

JENNIFER SIO-KWOK

Description

EXP REIMB: SOCIAL COMMITTEE FAIR TICKETS

ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

AD NAME: PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

2 GRADUATED CYLINDER PP 250ML & 1 PK BOTTLE RECT HDPE

1 SPEC COLOR DPD CHLORINE LR

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PPE & SAFETY SUPPLIES

JUNE 2015 SERVICE FEE

184 7-LB BAGS OF ICE

LABOR & EMPLOYMENT LAW FEES

JULY 2015 PAGER SERVICE

WEF MEMBERSHIP D DRAKE

WEF MEMBERSHIP M COSTELLO

LABOR & EMPLOYMENT LAW FEES

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

GUARD BOOTH RENTAL JULY 2015

EXP REIMB: LUNCH BUYER l/ll QAI PANEL

EXP REIMB: LUNCH EC INSPECTOR RECRUITMENT PANEL

EXP REIMB: LUNCH BUYER l/ll RECRUITMENT PANEL

Page 12 of 15

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$400.00
$400.00

$387.29
$387.29

$378.00
$378.00

$135.71
$298.68

$162.97

$295.09
$295.09

$280.07
$280.07

$273.00
$273.00

$255.76
$255.76

$255.00
$255.00

$220.70
$220.70

$218.00
$218.00

$218.00
$218.00

$208.00
$208.00

$195.13
$195.13

$192.50
$192.50

$48.85
$174.75

$91.25

$34.65

Page 38 of 85



Check No. Date Invoice No.

158364 7/30/2015 3I5435

7/30/2015 315111

7/30/2015 3J5322

7/30/2015 315434

158390 7/30/2015 20150728

158363 7/30/2015 9771796977

7/30/2015 9772991114

7/30/2015 9786369398

7/30/2015 9770663392

158375 7/30/2015 35016692

158348 7/30/2015 20150728

158291 7/23/2015 9763189009

158315 7/23/2015 20150722

158299 7/23/2015 1407190

158270 7/23/2015 109519

158343 7/30/2015 20150717

158303 7/23/2015 20150716

158327 7/23/2015 9853265.0

158272 7/23/2015 403021

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS

RUFUS TAI

GRAINGER INC

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

RAYMOND CHAU

GRAINGER INC

THERESA RODRIGUEZ

LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

JUDI BERZON

REGINA MCEVOY

UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

CHEMETRICS INC

Description

2 EA ELBOWS

1 EA 1/2° VALVE DEGAS AUTO VENT

CREDIT FOR 360 FEET OF 2" PVC PIPE

360 FT PVC PIPE & 15 EA COUPLINGS

EXP REIMB: PMI MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL

2 EA HINGE HANDLES

2 EA PATCH CORDS

CREDIT FOR 1 EA REMOTE START FOR GAS VIPER

2 EA SOCKETS

4 EA RECHARGEABLE SEALED LEAD-ACID BATTERIES

EXP RIEMB: CIP TEAM QTLY SAFETY STRATEGY RECOGNITION

1 EA REMOTE START FOR GAS VIPER

EXP REIMB: MANAGEMENT MEETING LUNCH

LEGAL SERVICES

3 NEW HIRE FINGERPRINTS

EXP REIMB: LUNCH FOR RECRUITMENT PANEL/SNACKS FOR PAN

EXP REIMB: LUNCH FOR ET MEETING

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 06/27/15

NITRITE VACU-VIALS KIT.CHEMETRICS CAT

Page 13 of 15

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$17.39
$170.55

$317.06

$-534.60

$370.70

$164.00
$164.00

$205.50
$160.73

$44.80

$-137.51

$47.94

$154.61
$154.61

$151.68
$151.68

$137.51
$137.51

$136.97
$136.97

$120.00
$120.00

$111.00
$111.00

$92.42
$92.42

$90.00
$90.00

$82.11
$82.11

$65.64
$65.64

Page 39 of 85



Check No.

158316

158373

158384

158355

158279

158367

158302

158283

158368

158346

158280

158365

158329

158305

Date

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

7/30/2015

7/23/2015

7/23/2015

Invoice No.

7576820101

20150721

85340220150723

615320150718

20150716

5546926

77773089

XJJJ5J1R8

290656266

445551

816312

815980

2764733

842932

842953

19901

9748156923

24847447

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Vendor

RS HUGHES CO INC

REGINA MCEVOY

SAN FRANCISCO WATER DEPT

DISH NETWORK

CSDA CAL SPECIAL DIST ASSOC

HOSE & FITTINGS ETC

MATHESON TRI-GAS INC

DELL MARKETING LP C/O DELL USA

IDEXX DISTRIBUTION INC

CENTERVILLE SAW AND TOOL

CUMMINS PACIFIC LLC

HAYWARD PIPE AND SUPPLY

VERIZON WIRELESS

MOTION INDUSTRIES INC

Description

4 BXS MICROFLEX SAFEGRIP LATEX GLOVES

EXP REIMB: CAKE FOR DAVID O'HARA'S RETIREMENT

SERVICE 06/20/15 TO 07/22/15

AUG2015-SERVICE FEE

MEMBERSHIP DUES 7/01/15-6/30/16

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

CYLINDER RENTAL - JUNE 2015

1 DELL MONITOR SOUND BAR

IDEXX QUANTI-TRAY COMPARATOR

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

2 CIR BKR

CREDIT ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

CREDIT ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

2 EA NIPPLES

WIRELESS SERV 06/02/15-07/01/15

2 EA OIL SEALS

Page 14 of 15

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$63.55
$63.55

$60.00
$60.00

$57.20
$57.20

$50.90
$50.90

$50.00
$50.00

$40.56
$40.56

$34.35
$34.35

$29.55
$29.55

$26.79
$26.79

$21.18
$21.18

$925.33
$20.97

$1,780.77

$232.08

$-214.40

$-2,702.81

$14.60
$14.60

$14.04
$14.04

$10.36
$10.36

Page 40 of 85



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

7/18/2015-7/31/2015

Description Invoice Amt Check Amt

Checks:

$0-$1,000: 80 30,469.67

$1,000-$10,000: 44 150,465.11

$10,000-$100,000: 13 378,841.73

Over $100,000: 6 2,394,041.38

Total: 143 2,953,817.89

heck No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

Invoices:

Credit Memos: 9 -7,852.08

$0-$1,000: 159 47,168.01

$1,000-$10,000: 60 178,770.72

$10,000-$100,000 14 417,404.15

Over $100,000: 7 2,318,327.09

Total: 249 2,953,817.89

Page 15 of 15Page 41 of 85



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Rich Cortes, Business Services Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9b - Meeting of August 10, 2015 
 Information Item: CalPERS Replacement Benefit Plan 
  
Recommendation 
 
Information Only. 
 
Background 
 
Internal Revenue Code Section 415(b) is a federal provision that limits the annual retirement 
benefit a retiree can be paid from a tax qualified defined benefit pension plan such as CalPERS. 
For 2015 the annual limit is $210,000 for members who retire at ages 62-65. The annual limit is 
reduced if you retire at a younger age.  
 
CalPERS has established a Replacement Benefit Plan (RBP), in accordance with Government 
Code Section 21750.  Based on the statute all contracting agencies participate in the RBP. The 
RBP ensures that members are provided with retirement benefits that would have been 
received had the IRC 415 (b) limit not been in place.  
 
At the time a member retires, CalPERS calculates the IRC 415(b) limit. For those retirees whose 
retirement payment exceeds the limit, CalPERS invoices employers for the amount above the 
limit based on the amount of service credit earned by the member with that employer. 
CalPERS factors these “extra” payments into our future acturarial reports as a gain which will 
reduce the employer contribution (in other words the Distirct is not paying twice for the 
benefit). 
 

Page 42 of 85



The District first became affected by the RBP with the retirement of two managers late last 
year. The District has been invoiced and paid a total of $46,335 for both individuals to CalPERS. 
According to CalPERS, this will be an annual invoice. Staff hired an actuary to project what 
additional future payments might be necessary based on this program so that future budgets 
could be more accurately projected. The attached table shows the results of the actuary’s 
analysis. For FY’16, we have budgeted a total of $88,000. Future costs will primarily depend on 
when employees retire, actual age of retiree, and federal limit changes. Staff will discuss this 
budget item during the spring Board Budget Workshop.  
 
 
Attachment 
 
  
 
 

Page 43 of 85



Union Sanitary District
Estimated Future Limitations to Plan Benefits

With

USD PERS

Sick

Leave

Credit Total

USD

Portion

Value

Assigned

To USD

1 3/19/58 2/4/56 6/16/85 12/31/15 57.12       57.78    59.91    29.87    31.83    1.31      0.66      211,502    211,502    161,737    126,310    (35,427)      (802,561)        94.20% (756,024)       

2 1/5/64 NA 5/26/93 12/31/25 51.32       61.99    NA 21.93    27.93    0.88      10.66    189,931    281,144    277,413    226,835    (50,578)      (600,939)        84.80% (509,586)       

3 9/1/67 2/20/69 7/15/91 12/31/22 47.66       55.33    53.86    23.79    23.79    0.98      7.66      162,500    213,839    155,955    127,985    (27,969)      (533,125)        100.00% (533,125)       

3 9/1/67 2/20/69 7/15/91 12/31/23 47.66       56.33    54.86    23.79    23.79    0.98      8.66      162,500    222,393    166,401    140,314    (26,087)      (469,170)        100.00% (469,170)       

3 9/1/67 2/20/69 7/15/91 12/31/24 47.66       57.33    55.86    23.79    23.79    0.98      9.66      162,500    231,289    177,371    153,930    (23,440)      (397,505)        100.00% (397,505)       

3 9/1/67 2/20/69 7/15/91 12/31/25 47.66       58.33    56.86    23.79    23.79    0.98      10.66    162,500    240,540    188,877    172,064    (16,813)      (268,663)        100.00% (268,663)       

3 9/1/67 2/20/69 7/15/91 12/31/26 47.66       59.33    57.86    23.79    23.79    0.98      11.66    162,500    250,162    200,937    188,990    (11,948)      (179,769)        100.00% (179,769)       

3 9/1/67 2/20/69 7/15/91 12/31/27 47.66       60.33    58.86    23.79    23.79    0.98      12.66    162,500    260,168    213,572    207,881    (5,691)        (80,577)          100.00% (80,577)         

4 8/20/70 2/27/68 8/7/88 12/31/25 44.70       55.36    57.84    26.73    26.73    0.07      10.66    183,402    271,479    233,881    137,938    (95,943)      (1,564,908)     100.00% (1,564,908)    

5 5/5/68 10/27/72 5/2/94 12/31/21 46.99       53.65    49.18    20.99    20.99    0.68      6.66      153,990    194,846    116,581    108,555    (8,026)        (169,556)        100.00% (169,556)       

5 5/5/68 10/27/72 5/2/94 12/31/22 46.99       54.65    50.18    20.99    20.99    0.68      7.66      153,990    202,640    130,129    121,240    (8,889)        (177,564)        100.00% (177,564)       

5 5/5/68 10/27/72 5/2/94 12/31/23 46.99       55.65    51.18    20.99    20.99    0.68      8.66      153,990    210,746    141,110    132,825    (8,285)        (156,413)        100.00% (156,413)       

5 5/5/68 10/27/72 5/2/94 12/31/24 46.99       56.65    52.18    20.99    20.99    0.68      9.66      153,990    219,175    150,726    145,607    (5,120)        (91,288)          100.00% (91,288)         

5 5/5/68 10/27/72 5/2/94 12/31/25 46.99       57.65    53.18    20.99    20.99    0.68      10.66    153,990    227,942    160,809    162,632    ‐             ‐                  100.00% ‐                 

5 5/5/68 10/27/72 5/2/94 12/31/26 46.99       58.65    54.18    20.99    20.99    0.68      11.66    153,990    237,060    171,370    178,482    ‐             ‐                  100.00% ‐                 

Assumptions: Limitation of Use:

Notes:

  DOB = Date of Birth; DOH = Date of Hire; DOR = Date of Retirement

Benefit

Limit

Estimating IRC 415 limits requires interpretations of complex regulations.  The calculations in this exhibit were 
performed in accordance with our understanding of these regulations.  However, Bickmore does not practice 
law nor can Bickmore provide tax advice.  Union Sanitary District may wish to have the methodologies used to 
derive these estimated reductions reviewed by a tax attorney or other tax specialist.

CPI = 2.50%.   The CPI is used to project the current IRC dollar limit to the year of termination ; Future Salary Increases 
= 4.00%; Mortality table used to determine value = 2000 RP Combined Table projected generationally by Scale AA; No 
mortality was assumed between 4/30/2015 and the assumed retirement age;  For reducing benefits for optional forms 
we used 7.5% interest and a 50/50 blend of the 2000 RP Combined table projected statically to the year of retirement 
by Scale AA;  Discount rate used for valuation (4%) was approximately the rate required by the Pension Discount Curve 
on April 30, 2015;  Benefit form is a joint and 100% survivor annuity with 2% COLA;  Participant 2 was assumed to 
receive a single life annuity with 2% COLA;  Union Sanitary District is assumed to be responsible for the fraction of the 
benefit represented by the ratio of the participant's service with Union Sanitary District to the participant's total PERS 
service.  The current sick leave balance was assumed to stay constant to retirement and the entire amount credited 
was assumed to be attributable to  Union Sanitary District.

Future Current Final

Benefit

Without

Limit

Dates: Earnings:Service:

No.

Reduced Retirement Benefit :Age:

DOB

Spouse

DOB DOH DOR

 As of

 4/30/15

At 

DOR

Spouse

At

DOR

As of 4/30/15

Initial

Reduction

Reduction Value @ 4%

 as of 4/30/15

6/23/2015Page 44 of 85



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: July 30, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9c – Meeting of August 10, 2015 

Information Item: Fourth Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement 
Program for FY 15 

  
Recommendation 
 
Information Only. 
 
Background 
 
In June 2014, the Board approved the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget for FY‘15 in the 
amount of $14.87 million for the design and construction of 21 projects. The fourth quarter 
expenditures for FY‘15 are shown on the attached budget projection graphs. These graphs depict 
actual expenditures versus approved budget for the Capacity Fund 900, the Renewal and 
Replacement Fund 800 as well as for both funds, combined. 
 
The total FY‘15 CIP expenditures up to June 30, 2015, were over the projections for the fourth 
quarter by about $1 million.  
 
These primary variances are tabulated as follows: 
 

Page 45 of 85



Agenda Item No. 9c 
Meeting of August 10, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

Project Variance at the 
end of  

4th Quarter  
(x $1000) 

Comments 

Newark Backyard SS Relocation -  
Phase II 
 

+ 595 Construction was not anticipated to 
start in earnest until the start of 
FY’16.  However, Contractor was 
able to make headway and earn 
two progress payments by end of 
FY’15. 
 

Cogen Project + 590 Most of this variance was for 
unforeseen Contract Change 
Orders. 
 

Stevenson Property Backup 
Communications Tower 
 

- 585 Construction of the tower has been 
deferred to explore the use of AT&T 
fiber optics instead.  
 

Digester No. 5 +400 Most of this variance was for a 
higher contract bid amount and 
unforeseen Contract Change 
Orders above approved budget. 

Total Variance for the 4th Qtr. + 1,000  

  
 
PRE/SEG:av 
 
 
Attachment: Budget Projection Graphs 
 
 

Page 46 of 85



Budget Projection Graphs 

 

 

 

  

2,045

6,460
8,975

11,630

2,107

6,400

9,386

12,166

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

Jul 14 Sept-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15

Fund 800 Budget

Fund 800 Actual

Structural R&R

Page 47 of 85



Budget Projection Graphs 

 

 

 

  

523

1,533

2,400

3,243

495

1,403

1,978

3,704

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$4,000

Jul 14 Sept-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15

Fund 900 Budget

Fund 900 Actual

Capacity

Page 48 of 85



Budget Projection Graphs 

 

 

 

2,568

7,993

11,375 
14,873

2,602

7,803

11,364

15,871

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$16,000

$18,000

Jul 14 Sept-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15

Total Budget

Total Actual

Total CumulativeTotal Cumulative

Page 49 of 85



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: July 30, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9d – Meeting of August 10, 2015 

Information Item: Status of Priority 1 CIP Projects 
  

Recommendation 
 
Information Only. 
 
Background 
 
In June 2014, the Board approved the Capital Improvement Program budget for FY’15 in the 
amount of $14.87 million for the design and construction of 21 projects. 
 
These 21 projects are further ranked as Priority 1 and 2 projects based on a criteria prepared by 
staff and approved by the Executive Team.  A copy of the criteria used to prioritize the projects is 
attached for your reference. 
 
The status of the Priority 1 CIP projects is reviewed by the Executive Team at the end of each 
quarter and a copy of the status report is attached for the Board’s review. For FY’15, nine (9) 
projects are ranked as Priority 1 projects and the remaining twelve (12) are ranked as Priority 2 
projects. 
 
  

Page 50 of 85



Agenda Item No. 9d 
Meeting of August 10, 2015 
Page 2  
 
 
Also attached is a tabular summary of the number and nature of the ongoing CIP projects at the 
District during FY’15. 
 
 
PRE/SEG:ks 
 
 
Attachments: Priority 1 CIP Project Criteria 

Priority 2 & 3 CIP Project Criteria 
Priority 1 CIP Projects Status Report 
Summary of CIP Projects for FY 15 

 

Page 51 of 85



PRIORITY 1 CIP PROJECT CRITERIA 
 
 
 
 
Priority 1 Projects: 
 
1. Project to repair or prevent an imminent critical infrastructure failure that could 

result in a threat to the public, or result in permit non-compliance. 
 
2. A project designed to address public health and safety or employee health 

and safety. 
 
3. Project to provide additional capacity in order to allow connection to the 

District system or to prevent a potential wet weather overflow from occurring. 
 
4. Projects that have a deadline tied to receiving a loan or grant funding. 
 
5. Projects where we have made a timeline commitment to a customer or other 

outside stakeholder. 
 
6. A project in which the District may suffer financial losses or claims should the 

project be delayed. 
 
7. A project which is part of a sequence of projects whose delay could result in 

delays to other projects at USD or other agencies. 
 
8. A project in which an internal commitment has been made to provide a facility 

that significantly impacts another group from efficiently and effectively 
carrying out their core work.  (Not a “nice to have” type project) 
 

These criteria can apply to a study, design, or construction project. 

Page 52 of 85



PRIORITY 2 & 3 CIP PROJECT CRITERIA 
 
 
 
 
Priority 2 Projects 
 

1. These are planned projects related to the replacement of electrical and 
mechanical equipment identified by the Plant Master Plan – this 
equipment is not in imminent danger of failure but needs to be replaced at 
a future date. 

2. These are planned pipeline rehab/replacement projects that are identified 
either by the Master Plan or by the Maintenance staff and need to be 
completed to improve the condition of existing sewers to safeguard 
against potential maintenance problems – these pipelines are not in 
imminent danger of failure. 

3. These projects do not have any immediate negative impacts on either 
other agencies or other projects. 

4. Examples: Blacow Road Sewer Replacement, Cast Iron Pipe 
Replacement, Thickener Mechanism 3&4 Replacement, Rehab of 
Clarifiers 5&6. 

 
 

Priority 3 Projects 
 
1. These are capacity projects identified by the master plans that will address 

future capacity needs of the District. 
2. These projects are place holders and need to be defined at a future date 
3. The District will not suffer any financial loss or claim, if these projects are 

delayed. 
4. Examples: Cedar Relief Sewer, Hetch Hetchy Relief Sewer, Digester 

No. 7, Secondary Clarifiers 7 & 8.  
 

Page 53 of 85



Priority 1 Projects for FY 15 – Status Report 

 Project Planned 
Milestones 

Status after 1st  
Quarter 

Status after 2nd 
Quarter 

Status after 3rd 
Quarter 

Status after 4th 
Quarter 

1 Alvarado-
Niles Blvd. 
Sewer Rehab 

Complete design by 
May, open bids by 
June, 2015. 

50% design due 
November 21, 2014. 

90% design is due 
on February 6th. 
 

100% design 
submittal received 
and review 
commenced. 

Design is complete.  
Construction is 
postponed to FY 16 
and 17 per Union 
City’s request. 

2 Jarvis Ave. 
Sewer 
Replacement  

Complete 
construction by 
January, 2015. 

Construction work is 
approximately 45% 
complete. 

Board accepted 
project on November 
24th.  

Completed in 2nd 
Quarter. 

Completed in 2nd 
Quarter. 

3 Pine St. 
Easement 
 

Complete 
preliminary design 
and begin 
environmental 
review process by 
June, 2015. 
 

Design consultant is 
selected and 
negotiations 
underway for task 
order to evaluate pipe 
bridge alternatives. 

Field surveying and 
geotech 
investigation to be 
completed in 
February. 

Completed field 
surveying and 
geotech 
investigation.  Bridge 
Alternatives Tech 
Memo due in April. 

Workshop to review 
Bridge Alternatives 
was conducted. 
Draft Tech Memo 
(TM) was received in 
May.  Final TM was 
submitted in July. 

4 Upper Hetch 
Hetchy Sewer 
Rehab 
 
 

Complete 
construction by April, 
2015. 

Rehabilitation of 24 
and 27-inch pipe in 
Fremont is complete. 
Construction work is 
approximately 65% 
complete. 

Construction is 
approximately 90% 
complete. 
 

Board accepted 
project on February 
9th.   

Completed in 3rd 
Quarter. 

5 Fremont & 
Paseo Padre 
Lift Station  
Internal Lift 
Pumps 
 

Complete condition 
assessment by 
October 2014, 
Complete design by 
June 2015 
 

Condition assess-
ment of pumps is 
complete. RFP to 
consultants for 
design services will 
be issued in October. 

Preliminary design 
memo is due March 
13th and 50% 
design is due on 
April 10th. 
 

Preliminary design 
memo received and 
review commenced; 
comments due back 
to Consultant in 
April.   

Received 90% 
design on June 25th.  
Final design was 
submitted in July. 

6 Wet Weather 
Flow 
Management 
 

Site Use Study: 
Presentation to USD 
Board by May, 2015 
Complete draft 
report by June 2015. 
 

Kickoff meeting was 
conducted on 
September 2nd.  
Workshop No. 1 is 
scheduled for 
November 18th. 

Workshop No. 1 
occurred on 
November 18.  Draft 
report is due in 
February. 

 

Workshop No. 2 
held on January 6th.  
Draft report was 
received in March. 

Conducted Board 
workshop on June 
15th.  Final report 
completed in May. 

Page 54 of 85



7 Cogeneration 
Project 

Complete 
construction by 
December, 2014. 
 

Commissioning of the 
engine generator 
system is complete.  
Operational testing of 
the engine generator 
and digester gas 
conditioning systems 
has begun. 
Construction work is 
approximately 94% 
complete. 

Accepted engines 
and digester gas 
conditioning system 
on November 17th.  
Demolition and site 
work remain.  
Construction 
anticipated to be 
complete in 
February. 

Issued Substantial 
Completion on 
March 4th.  Work on 
punch list items has 
begun and will 
continue into the 4th 
quarter.   

Completed in 3rd 
Quarter. 

8 Thickener 
Control Bldg. 
Modifications 
Project 
 

Complete the 
construction of the 
Electrical Building 
(structure only) by 
June 2015. 
 
Complete installation 
of major electrical 
work by August 
2015. 
 
Complete 
construction by 
November, 2016. 

Excavation of the 
new TPS pipeline 
trench and electrical 
building foundation is 
complete.  
Construction work is 
approximately 5% 
complete. 

Underground 
ductbanks installa-
tion continued.  
Demolition of an 
existing slab 
adjacent to the 
Heating and Mixing 
Building No. 1 has 
been slowed due to 
unforeseen 
underground utilities.   

Completed installa-
tion of new TPS 
pipeline & major 
underground 
electrical ductbanks.  
New Electrical Bldg 
foundation and walls 
are complete.  Roof 
will be installed in 
April.  Commenced 
with electrical 
equipment installa-
tion in the new 
electrical room in 
Heating and Mixing 
Building No. 1 

New Thickener 
Electrical Building is 
complete.  New 
MCCs and PLCs 
were installed in the 
Thickener Electrical 
Building and Heating 
and Mixing Building 
No. 1.  Installation of 
the sludge and scum 
bypass pipelines has 
begun. 

9 Digester No. 
5 Rehab 

Complete 
construction by 
February 2015 

Removal of sealant 
between the dome 
and concrete tank 
wall and preparation 
for steel dome 
supports has begun.  
Work is 
approximately 12% 
complete. 

Discovered 
significant corrosion 
damage to the 
digester dome skirt 
that required repairs.  
Still on track for 
completion in 
February. 
 

Issued Project 
Substantial 
Completion on 
February 27th.  
Contractor began 
work on punch list 
items and will 
continue into the 4th 
quarter. 

Completed in 3rd 
Quarter. 

 

Page 55 of 85



SUMMARY OF CIP PROJECTS FOR FY 15 

 

Type of Project Number of Projects Names of Projects 
 
Collection System  

 
Six 

1. Alvarado-Niles Blvd. Sewer Rehab  
2. Jarvis Ave. Sewer Relocation 
3. Newark Backyard Sewer Relocation 
4. Pine Street Easement Repair 
5. Upper Hetch Hetchy Sewer Rehab Project 
6. Veasy Street Sewer Improvements Project 

 
 
Transport System  

 
Five 

1. Boyce Road Lift Station 
2. Cherry Street Pump Station Improvements 
3. Fremont & PP LS Internal Lift Pumps 
4. Stevenson Property Backup Comm Tower 
5. Wet Weather Flow Management 

 
 
Treatment System  

 
Ten 

1. Aeration System Rehab 
2. Cogeneration Project 
3. Digester No. 5 Rehab 
4. Generator Controls Upgrade 
5. MCC Replacement Project, Phase III 
6. Plant Facilities Improvements Project 
7. 60” Primary Effluent Pipe Rehab 
8. Sludge Drying (BACWA Study) 
9. Thickener Control Bldg Improvements Project 
10. Water Storage Tank and Well 

 
 

Page 56 of 85



  
 

Summary of the EBDA Commission Meeting 
Thursday, July 16, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. 

Prepared by: P. Eldredge 
 
• Commissioners Handley, Dias, Johnson, Peixoto, and Prola were present. 

 
• The Consent Calendar was approved unanimously and included the Commission Meeting 

Minutes, List of Disbursements, and Treasurer’s Report.  
 
• The Commission unanimously approved the reports from the General Manager, Managers 

Advisory, Financial Management, Regulatory Affairs, and Operations & Maintenance committees. 
The following items were discussed: 

 
• General Mangers Report The General Manager deferred his comments to specific agenda items.   
 
• Managers Advisory Committee (MAC) met with the General Manager on July 15, 2015. The 

Committee discussed the selection process for the Outfall Inspection Project contractor. The 
results will be presented to the Commission in August. The MAC discussed recycled water use and 
the long-term EBDA JPA. 

 
• Financial Management Committee approved the June List of Disbursements and Preliminary 

Treasurer’s Report. The Committee was advised on improvements made to EBDA’s accounts 
payable process since the implementation of the cloud-based Financial Edge software. 

 
• Regulatory Affairs Committee reviewed June permit compliance. The Committee discussed a 

resolution authorizing a personal services agreement with Eisenberg, Olivieri, and Associates, Inc. 
for assistance with the NPDES permit reissuance. The Regulatory Committee recommended that 
the Commission adopt the resolution. Lastly, the Committee reviewed the Water Board’s 
inspection of the MDF. At the recommendation of the inspector, James Parrish, EBDA has 
modified the calculation procedure for total coliform from a running geometric mean to a monthly 
geometric mean. This change will have no impact on compliance. In general, Mr. Parrish was 
impressed with the level of redundancy in place at the facility. 

 
• Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Committee met with the General Manager on July 13, 2015 

and was updated on EBDA performance. The Committee was updated on the status of the AEPS 
VFD and harmonic filter project. The VFDs have been ordered and are expected to arrive before 
September 2015. Phase 2 of the OLEPS PLC project is underway. The Committee discussed the 
selection process for the Outfall Pipe Inspection Project contractor. Contractor interviews were 
held on July 13 the Committee and Commission will be updated in August. 

 
• Ad-Hoc Committee met with General Manager and discussed the response letter from Castro 

Valley Sanitary District. The Authority’s legal counsel met with the Ad Hoc Committee to discuss 
the general options of extending, modifying or terminating the long-term EBDA JPA. He 
emphasized that terminating the JPA is not practical and not likely to meet regulatory approval. 
He reminded the Commission that the inception of the JPA was dependent upon a vision of the 
needs for the East Bay in the upcoming 40 years. That vision guided the formation of EBDA, and 

Page 57 of 85



he suggested that this would be an appropriate time to develop a similar long-term vision. The Ad 
Hoc Committee concurred as did the full Commission and directed the General Manager to 
schedule a workshop for the member agencies to begin to develop a long-term vision for EBDA to 
help frame the future roles for the organization. 

 
The Commission unanimously passed the following resolution: 
 

o Commissioner Prola moved to approve the resolution authorizing a personal services 
agreement with Eisenberg, Olivieri, and Associates, Inc. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Johnson and carried unanimously (Handley, Johnson, Prola, Peixoto, Dias; 
ayes). 
 

Page 58 of 85



Page 59 of 85



Page 60 of 85



Page 61 of 85



Page 62 of 85



Page 63 of 85



Page 64 of 85



Page 65 of 85



Page 66 of 85



Page 67 of 85



Page 68 of 85



Page 69 of 85



Page 70 of 85



Page 71 of 85



Page 72 of 85



Page 73 of 85



Page 74 of 85



Page 75 of 85



Page 76 of 85



Page 77 of 85



Page 78 of 85



Page 79 of 85



Page 80 of 85



Page 81 of 85



Page 82 of 85



Page 83 of 85



Page 84 of 85



Page 85 of 85



Desk Item – Revisions Reflect Legal/Community Affairs Committee Review 
Item 8 

8/10/2015 Board Meeting 

 

 

Rate Increase FY 2016 

Union Sanitary District (USD) is an award winning public agency providing wastewater service to 
the Tri-Cities (Fremont, Newark and Union City).  USD held a public hearing in July 2015 to 
consider the third and final rate increase recommended by a 2013 rate study.  In 2013, USD 
sent a Proposition 218 notice to all property owners in Fremont, Newark, and Union City 
regarding rates for Fiscal Years 2014, 2015, and 2016. Before the July 2015 hearing, USD 
published notices in two newspapers and on its website containing information regarding time, 
place, and format for public comment. 

The District recognizes that no one enjoys a rate increase and continuously looks for ways to 
reduce costs while maintaining a high level of service. Only four agencies of 26 surveyed in the 
Bay Area have rates lower than USD. To meet increased expenses, and to allow for necessary 
and required maintenance and upgrades to the District’s infrastructure, USD staff 
recommended the Board adopt a modest increase in sewer service charges for all customers. 
For single-family homeowners (the majority of USD’s customers) the increase equates to $1.67 
per month, bringing the annual total to $377 for Fiscal Year 2016. 

 

Background: 

USD strives to keep rates low and stable  
Beginning in 2004, USD implemented a rate increase program for the purpose of funding capital 
improvements and keeping pace with increasing operation costs facing the agency. Prior to 
2004, USD had not increased rates since 1997, and in fact decreased them in 1999, 2000, and 
2002. During that time, the District used reserves to finance the majority of its capital projects, 
which significantly decreased this account. A modest rate increase program was therefore 
implemented in 2004 to carry out the Board’s philosophy of keeping rates relatively stable over 
time and insulate protecting ratepayers from large fluctuations or. USD’s goal is to keep sewer 
service charges as low as possible and protect customers from the price spikes that can occur in 
a service delivery business. Under this program, USD’s sewer service charges have increased an 
average of 5.5 percent each year since 2004. A graph illustrating the recent history of rates and 
capital expenditures is shown on the following page. 



Desk Item – Revisions Reflect Legal/Community Affairs Committee Review 
Item 8 

8/10/2015 Board Meeting 

 

While tThe District plans 10 years in advance for capital projects and needs,; these capital 
expenditures are evaluated on an annual basis. Capital expenditures for FY 2015 are anticipated 
to total $15.3 million. Currently, capital expenditure projected totals for Fiscal Years 2016, 
2017, and 2018 are $16.75, $23.25, and $26.2 million respectively. 

USD rates in perspective  
USD conducts an annual rate comparison survey of 26 Bay Area wastewater agencies. It is tThe 
District’s goal is to remain in the lower 1/3 of agencies surveyed, meaning USD’s rates would be 
lower than 2/3 of neighboring agencies. Today, only four districts have lower rates. 

$13,679,106
$12,883,305

$10,751,713

$21,373,200

$16,423,680

$10,334,639

$25,478,978 $25,504,644

$17,781,708

$6,583,837
$7,098,937

$9,641,617

$14,995,919

$10,450,741

$9,129,799

$18,486,346

$11,336,658

$19,787,091

1.7%

0.0%

-2.3% -2.0%

0.0%

-1.6%

0.0%

5.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%
6.5% 6.5% 6.5%

5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
5.7%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

FY97 FY98 FY99 FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14

Sewer Service Charge Rate Changes & Capital Expenditures

Capital Expenditures

% Rate Change



Desk Item – Revisions Reflect Legal/Community Affairs Committee Review 
Item 8 

8/10/2015 Board Meeting 

 



Desk Item – Revisions Reflect Legal/Community Affairs Committee Review 
Item 8 

8/10/2015 Board Meeting 

USD’s rate comparison history 

The graph below shows USD’s rate percentiles since the District began surveying 26 Bay Area 
wastewater agencies annually in 2002. USD's rates are currently in the 15th percentile.   
 

 
 
Compared to other utilities and services, USD’s rates are the lowest. 
A typical household in USD’s service area pays considerably more for services like those below: 

Sewer Rate shown is USD's FY 2015 single-family residential rate (July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015) 
 
Other monthly utility rates are based on a typical residential household and were obtained from service providers in August 2014. Cell phone monthly 
bill is based on a typical calling plan for a family of four. 

 
USD’s Capital Improvement Program is a large driver for increased rates: 
USD maintains a large number of facilities and equipment, including more than 811 miles of 
sewer lines, seven pump stations, the treatment plant and other infrastructure – much of it 
built in the late 1970s. Responsible, timely upkeep of these facilities has allowed the District to 
avoid catastrophic failures, interruptions to service, major spills, and sinkholes that often 
plague other utilities and agencies.   

Since 2004, the primary focus of the District’s Capital Improvement Program has been on 
rehabilitation, replacement and repair of its pump stations and treatment plant equipment. For 

42%

28%

24%

28%

15.3%

19.2%

15.3% 15.3% 15.3% 15.3% 15.3%
11.5% 11.5%

15.3%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

USD SSC Percentile of 26 Surveyed Agencies



Desk Item – Revisions Reflect Legal/Community Affairs Committee Review 
Item 8 

8/10/2015 Board Meeting 

Fiscal Years 2004 - 2014, USD spent more than $151 million on capital projects. The plant 
operates 24/7/365 to process an average of 23 million gallons of untreated sewage every day, 
and operates and maintains more than 50 major treatment process units and buildings. A large 
portion of District facilities are now over 35 years old.  

USD's Proposed Rate Increase Compared to Inflation 
The Consumer Price Index, typically referred to as inflation, for the San Francisco Bay Area has 
averaged approximately 3% annually (between 1996 and 2014). The proposed rate increase 
does exceed inflation as it takes operational and capital increases into consideration, which are 
not the types of expenses included in CPI computations. Capital expenses, or the cost of 
projects required to maintain the integrity of the District’s infrastructure, are based upon a 
prioritized need and life cycle of the infrastructure. Limiting rate increases to accommodate 
inflation only would result in a short-fall in funds necessary to safely and responsibly operate 
the District and maintain/rehabilitate infrastructure. The difference in revenues between 5.7% 
and 3% over the next four years would equate to approximately 14.5 million dollars in lost 
revenue.  
 
Without this revenue, District staff would have to be significantly reduced and/or capital 
projects would be postponed or not completed. All of the projects proposed in the District’s CIP 
program are necessary;, thus, delaying projects raises the likelihood of failure, increases project 
costs, and leads to possibly even larger future rate increases. Approximately 15 critical projects 
in the current CIP budget would need to be deferred to a later date if revenues were decreased.  
 
Deferring and deleting planned CIP projects increases the risk of failure.  Repair and 
replacement costs increase when infrastructure fails due to the emergency nature of this work.  
These additional costs include but are not limited to uncompetitive bids, clean-up, claims for 
damage, traffic delays, material and labor premiums and environmental impacts that can lead 
to permit violations and fines.  A planned repair and replacement program is significantly more 
cost effective and efficient.  The deferment of projects does not secure a reduced rate as these 
projects will need to be completed at some point. 
 
If the rate increase were reduced to 3%, utilizing the CIP budget currently recommended by staff, 
the Structural Renewal & Replacement Fund balances would be negative. Under this scenario 
negative fund balances would begin in FY 2018 and would extend for five consecutive years, with 
the largest negative balance of $16.2 million in FY 2020. This would not only violate the District’s 
adopted Reserve Fund Policy, but also significantly weaken its financial stability. In accordance 
with generally accepted government accounting standards, the District's policy states that, at a 
minimum, the fund should remain positive throughout a ten year planning period.  
 
The graph on the following page shows the District’s fund balances under a 3% increase scenario: 



Desk Item – Revisions Reflect Legal/Community Affairs Committee Review 
Item 8 

8/10/2015 Board Meeting 

 

 
 
 
Additional Costs  
In addition to funding USD’s capital improvement program, rate increases have been 
implemented in part to address other rising costs.  Approximately 42% of the District’s total 
budget is dedicated to personnel expenses, which is within range of other service providers in 
this industry. Every business has faced steeply rising employee costs;, USD is no different.  To 
help offset these rising costs, all USD employees pay a portion of their health care and pension 

7,402,000
9,131,000

1,474,000

-7,397,000

-12,549,000

-16,227,000

-$20,000,000

-$15,000,000

-$10,000,000

-$5,000,000

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Fund Balance - 3% Rate Increase Scenario

Ending Balance

7,402,000
9,131,000

1,474,000

-7,397,000

-12,549,000

-16,227,000

-$20,000,000

-$15,000,000

-$10,000,000

-$5,000,000

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Ending Balance

Renewal & Replacement Fund Balance – 3% increase scenario: 
(At 3% the monthly increase would be approximately $10.71 vs. $19.98 at 5.7%) 



Desk Item – Revisions Reflect Legal/Community Affairs Committee Review 
Item 8 

8/10/2015 Board Meeting 

benefits.  By March of 2016, employees of USD will be paying approximately 30% of the overall 
pension costs.  In addition, USD is subject to pension reforms enacted by the State.  These 
reforms reduce the retirement benefit and raise the retirement age for new USD employees 
that have not participated in the previous retirement program.  Currently, approximately 10% 
of USD’s workforce participate in the new program. 
 
Chemicals, electricity, and fuel also account for a significant portion of the District’s budget - 
those costs have similarly increased substantially over the last 10 years. Chemical costs alone 
were over $1.8 million in FY 2014. USD’s electricity bill in FY 2014 was over $2.1 million. While 
USD uses renewable energy wherever possible and works toward energy-independence, the 
District must still purchase power from outside sources, generally at rising costs every year.  
Moreover, the cost of complying with state and local regulations, including annual permit fees, 
also continues to rise.  
 
Efficiency/Technology   
One of the many factors keeping USD’s rates low is efficient service and use of technology.  By 
implementing technology to streamline permitting, plant operations, maintenance 
management and engineering services, the District has been able to maintain conservative 
staffing levels, thus helping to control costs.  USD also teams with neighboring agencies to 
purchase chemicals and equipment at discounted prices.  Careful financial planning allows USD 
to finance capital improvements at very low, below-market rates. 
 
Award Winning Service/Agency 
USD is proud of its award winning service.  Since 2004, nearly every team or workgroup at USD 
has received awards.  A partial list of those awards includes: 

• Peak Performance Platinum Award from the National Association of Clean Water 
Agencies (NACWA) for five years of 100% compliance at the District’s Treatment Plant. 
USD's Plant has been recognized for 21 consecutive years by NACWA (and its 
predecessor, the Association of Metropolitan Sewerage Agencies or AMSA) for 
outstanding performance 

• Engineering Achievement Award for 2014 from the California Water Environment 
Association (CWEA) 

• CWEA Collection System Worker of the Year – 2013 
• CWEA Al Ditman Professional Development Award - 2013 
• CWEA Safety Program of the Year – Statewide Award 2010 
• CWEA Treatment Plant of the Year for the State of California - 2009  
• CWEA Collection System Maintenance Program of the Year - 2005, 2009, 2010, 2012 
• US EPA Pretreatment Program of the Year (National Award) - 2008 
• Distinguished Project Award, 2007 - American Public Works Association 



Desk Item – Revisions Reflect Legal/Community Affairs Committee Review 
Item 8 

8/10/2015 Board Meeting 

• Training Magazine International Top 125 Training Programs (private and public sector 
businesses) – 2011 (USD was one of only 3 public sector agencies of the 125 companies) 

 
For more information, please take a look at USD’s previous newsletters which can be found on 
the District’s website at www.unionsanitary.ca.gov .  Go to the “links and glossary” tab and look 
for Customer Focus to read District newsletters. 
 
 
 

 

Protecting the Tri-Cities and San Francisco Bay 
5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 
(510) 477-7500 
www.unionsanitary.ca.gov 
email: contactusd@unionsanitary.ca.gov 

 

http://www.unionsanitary.ca.gov/
http://www.unionsanitary.ca.gov/
mailto:contactusd@unionsanitary.ca.gov

	08-10-15 Board Packet
	1 08-10-15 Agenda
	1. Call to Order.
	2. Pledge of Allegiance.
	3. Roll Call.
	6. Oral Communications.
	a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are welcome to request information from staff.
	b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.
	THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

	2 08-10-15 Committee Notice
	4 07-27-15 Regular Meeting Minutes
	UCALL TO ORDER
	President Toy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
	UPledge of Allegiance
	URoll Call
	PRESENT: Jennifer Toy, President
	Pat Kite, Secretary
	Manny Fernandez, Director
	ABSENT: Tom Handley, Vice President
	Anjali Lathi, Director
	STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
	Dave O’Hara, District Counsel
	Karen Murphy, Special District Counsel
	Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager
	Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager
	James Schofield, Collection Services Manager
	Michelle Powell, Communications Coordinator
	Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst
	Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary
	GUESTS: Alice Johnson, League of Women Voters
	UMonthly Operations Report for June 2015
	This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  General Manager Eldredge reported the following:
	 Odor Complaints:  There were no odor complaints in June 2015.
	 Safety:
	o A forklift was driving in the Co-Gen building and the floor grating began to collapse.  Staff has identified the floor grating as not being rated for vehicle traffic, and the area is being marked to warn vehicles from driving over the grating.
	 Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group:
	o At-work hours per employee per week is above the target of 34.
	o While the District met the goal of less than 47 hours of average annual sick leave per employee, not all work groups met the same goal.  Currently, the sick leave chart includes time off through FMLA (Family and Medical Leave Act).  Staff will be wo...
	Principal Financial Analyst Scott reported the following on behalf of Business Services:
	 Revenues:
	o $609,647 received in capacity fees in June
	o The final Sewer Service Charge payment is expected to be received in August.
	 Expenses:
	o All Work Groups were under budget at the end of the fiscal year.
	o Operating expenses were under budget at the end of the fiscal year.
	General Manager Eldredge reported the following:
	 Technical Services:
	o Customer Service:
	 18 trouble calls dispatched
	 2 new lateral permits issued
	 Assisted with outreach for the recent public hearing
	o Environmental Compliance
	 Completed 73 Stormwater (Urban Runoff) inspections, of which 23 resulted in enforcement action.
	 Completed 86 FOG (fats, oils, and grease for restaurants) inspections, of which 33 resulted in enforcement action.
	 Collection Services:
	o Completed over 21 miles of cleaning
	o Completed over 15 miles of televising sewer lines
	o Provided support for the following projects:  Fremont and Union City overlay projects, Mobile Technologies’ Study, and Newark Lateral Relocation
	 Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction:
	o Completed 98% of preventative maintenance activities for the month of June
	o Completed 103 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of June
	o Completed work on the cheese waste project
	 Treatment & Disposal:
	o Completed process of going down to one forcemain, due to lower flows and materials sitting in the forcemain too long.  The District has seen a $500/day savings in chemicals.
	o Cogen produced 73% of power consumed for the plant during the month of June
	UWRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
	There were no written communications.
	UORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	There were no oral communications.
	General Manager Eldredge thanked General Counsel O’Hara for his service to the District and read the resolution aloud.
	It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Kite, to approve Resolution No. 2765, Honoring District General Counsel Davis M. O’Hara Upon His Retirement.  Motion carried by the following vote:
	AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy
	NOES: None
	ABSENT: Handley, Lathi
	ABSTAIN: None
	UApprove the Salary for the Position of Buyer I
	This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Business Services Coach Destafney stated the District’s Buyer II will be retiring in September, and the upcoming recruitment will be for the position of Buyer I/II.  The District has not had a Buyer ...
	It was moved by Secretary Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Approve the Salary for the Position of Buyer I.  Motion carried with the following vote:
	AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy
	NOES: None
	ABSENT: Handley, Lathi
	ABSTAIN: None
	UAccept the Final Report for the Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Options Study from RMC Water and Environment
	This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Research and Support Team Coach Grillo stated the Hayward Marsh has provided the District with 20 MGD (million gallons per day) of wet weather flow capacity not available via the EBDA (...
	It was moved by Secretary Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Accept the Final Report for the Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Options Study From RMC Water and Environment.  Motion carried with the following vote:
	AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy
	NOES: None
	ABSENT: Handley, Lathi
	ABSTAIN: None
	UAccept the Final Report for the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Study from RMC Water and Environment
	This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the purpose of the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Use Study was to develop a high-level planning tool to guide optimization of the A...
	It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Kite, to Accept the Final Report for the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Study from RMC Water and Environment.  Motion carried with the following vote:
	AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy
	NOES: None
	ABSENT: Handley, Lathi
	ABSTAIN: None
	UApprove Modification of Job Title from Communications Coordinator to Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator, and Revisions to Job Description and Salary Schedule
	This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  General Manager Eldredge stated the Board directed staff to provide legislative updates, and approved the concept of adding said task to the job description of the District’s Communications Coordinat...
	It was moved by Secretary Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Approve Modification of Job Title from Communications Coordinator to Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator, and Revisions to Job Description and Salary Schedule.  ...
	AYES: Fernandez, Kite, Toy
	NOES: None
	ABSENT: Handley, Lathi
	ABSTAIN: None
	INFORMATION ITEMS:
	UCheck RegisterU
	All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.

	7.ResNo_AcceptEasmt8119
	8119GrantAgendaResolutiontofinaltoboard
	Vicinity Map
	NotarizedGrantandExhibitsAandB

	8.1 SR Approve SSC Fact Sheet
	8.2 SSC Fact Sheet
	9a. Bd Ck Reg Rpt073115
	9b.1 Replacement Benefit Plan
	9b.2 Benefit Limitation Estimates with Sick Leave Credit
	9c.FourthQtrReportCIP
	Bd-CIP Variance-4th qtr FY15.pdf
	Graphs.pdf

	9d.StatusPriority1CIP
	Bd-Priority I Projects-4th qtr FY15
	Priority 1 CIP Project Criteria
	Priority 2 and 3 CIP Project Criteria
	Priority 1 CIP Projects for FY 15 - Status Report
	Summary of CIP projects - FY 15

	9e. EBDA Meeting of July 16
	99 Newspaper Articles

	8 Revised Fact Sheet - DESK ITEM



